
 
 
 

 
 
 
         11 November 2016 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Monday, 21 November 2016 

beginning at 
6:15 pm 

in 
Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 
TO: Councillor Anne Winstanley (Chair), Councillor Daniel Clarke (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Keith House Councillor David Airey 
Councillor Wayne Irish Councillor Judith Grajewski 
Councillor Derek Pretty Councillor Mrs Maureen A Sollitt 
Councillor Steve Sollitt  

 
 
Staff Contacts: Cheryll Kemsley, Democratic Services Officer Tel:  023 8068 8112; 

Email: cheryll.kemsley@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

  
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk. 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

1. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2016. 
  
2. Apologies     
 
3. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

  
4. Code of Conduct Complaints - Annual Review    (To Follow) 
 
5. Boundary Commission Initial Review    (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
6. Independent Persons     
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 6 February 2017 at 6:15 pm 

in the Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, 
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 
 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1 
 

 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 27 June 2016  (6:15 pm – 6:45 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Winstanley (Chair); Councillors Clarke, House, Airey, Irish, 
Grajewski, Pretty, Mrs Sollitt and Sollitt 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Smith 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2016 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

3. ELECTORAL REVIEW OF EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL: DRAFT 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services which advised that the Local Government Boundary 
Commission for England (LGBCE) had published its draft 
recommendations on the current electoral review of the Council. This was 
based on evidence the LGBCE had received during previous phases of 
the review where it considered that a reduction in Council size by five 
Members to 39 would ensure the Council could perform its roles and 
responsibilities effectively. 
 
The Council now had until 4 July 2016 to submit its views on the 
consultation. 
 
Whilst it was largely happy with the proposals by LGBCE’s, Members were 
concerned with the proposal to transfer the Ingleside estate, a community 
of around 500 electorates, to Hound North, when it had a clearer 
geographical and association within Netley. 
 
In order to strengthen the Council’s reasoning behind retaining Ingleside in 
Hamble and Netley ward, the consultation response would include finer 
details on proposed housing sites in the area, which included Pylands 

1

Agenda Item 1



2 
 

 

Lane, Bridge Road, Providence Hill, four sites in Hamble Lane, and Berry 
Farm. 
 
Councillor House urged Parish and Town Councils to respond to the 
consultation if it had not done so already, and all Members thanked the 
LGBCE for considering the Council’s proposals to the boundary review. 
 
RESOLVED -    
 
That a further detailed housing allocation statement on proposed 
sites in the area, which included Pylands Lane, Bridge Road, 
Providence Hill, Hamble Lane and Berry Farm, formulate the Borough 
Council’s response for a warding pattern to the Local Government 
Boundary Commission. 
 

4. THE TRANSFER OF LICENSING ADMINISTRATION 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director – Support 
Services (CFO) that sought Members approval to extend the existing 
licensing partnership with Southampton City Council (SCC) to include 
licensing of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles, drivers and 
operators, scrap metal, sex establishments, and street and house to house 
collections. 
 
The existing working relationship between SCC and the Council, with 
regard to the Licensing Act 2003 partnership, was extremely strong. An 
extension of the existing partnership arrangements to include other 
services currently provided in-house would aim to provide greater ‘service 
robustness’ / continuity of service in the future together with a more cost 
effective service.  The policies and the financial arrangements for the 
service would remain the same, and be controlled by Eastleigh Borough 
Council. 
 
Members were keen to support the proposals listed in the report, and 
agreed that it was the right way to proceed. 
 
RESOLVED -    
 
That the extension of the Council’s existing licensing partnership 
arrangements with Southampton City Council to include hackney 
carriage and private hire licensing and other residual licensing as set 
out in paragraph 8 of the report, be approved. 
 

5. APPOINTMENTS OF INDEPENDENT PERSONS - VERBAL UPDATE 
 
Richard Ward, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, advised Members 
that the terms of office for the Council’s two independent persons was due 
to end in October 2016. Elizabeth Taylor and Elaine Burnell had been 
appointed by the Council for the last three years to investigate breaches of 
the code of conduct. Both had served as Chair, swapping half way through 

2



3 
 

 

to/from Vice-Chair. Members were advised that under the terms of the 
agreement, both ladies could be re-appointed if they wished to apply, and 
Members welcomed this.  
 
Members’ direction was now sought as to how they wished the posts to be 
advertised. 
 
RESOLVED -     
 
That an advert for two Independent Persons be placed in the 
Hampshire Independent paper and through the Council’s standard 
communication system in late summer. 
 
M5592 
 
 

3



This page is intentionally left blank



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

Monday 21 November 2016 

Boundary Commission Initial Review 

Report of the Monitoring Officer 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Administration Committee consider the contents of this 
report and decides if it wishes to make any representations to the Boundary 
Commission. 
 

Summary 
 
This report seeks to advise the committee as to the process and timetable associated with 
implementing a report from the Boundary Commission. Furthermore, it hopes to outline the 
proposed 2018 changes to the Hampshire constituency boundaries and what affects it will 
have on the Borough of Eastleigh. 
 

Statutory Powers 
 
Parliamentary Voting System and Constituencies Act 2011 Part 2. 

 

Background 

1. In 2011, the Government was under pressure to make politics less expensive. 
To this end, it passed the Parliamentary Voting System and Constituencies 
Act (referred to in this report as ‘the Act’). This legislation provided that the 
number of constituencies in the United Kingdom be reduced from 650 to 600. 

2. As well as reducing the number of constituencies, the Act sought to ensure 
that the number of electorates be made more equal. It was decided that every 
constituency must have an electorate that is no less than 95% and no more 
than 105% of the UK electoral quota. 

3. Accordingly every constituency in the UK should have an electorate that is no 
smaller than 71,031 and no larger than 78, 507. 

4. One notable exception to this rule is the Isle of Wight, who must have two 
constituencies regardless of electorate size, as stipulated by section 11 of the 
Act. 

5. The organisation tasked with carrying out this undertaking, was the 
independent public body, the Boundary Commission for England (BCE). 

5

Agenda Item 5



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

6. By September 2018, the BCE must have given their report to the Government, 
who will turn their recommendations into draft legislation. There is then the 
option of codifying the recommendations as they are, or revising them before 
Parliament gives its approval. 

7. The BCE has stated that it wants to keep the impact of its proposals to a 
minimum, although this will be difficult considering the radical nature of the 
restructure. However, schedule 2 of the Act sets out a number of factors that 
must be taken into consideration to help limit the inconveniences felt by the 
electorate; 

 Special geographical considerations, including in particular the size, 

shape and accessibility of a constituency; 

 Local government boundaries as they exist on the most recent ordinary 

council-election day before the review date; 

 Boundaries of existing constituencies; 

 Any local ties that would be broken by changes in constituencies; 

 The inconveniences attendant on such changes. 
 
8. The consultation period is currently live in the UK and the BCE is asking the 

public to share their views on how their proposals can be improved. The 
deadline for the submission of responses is 5 December 2016. 
 

9. The initial proposals put forward by the BCE split the country up into sub-
regions. Eastleigh is contained in the sub-region of Hampshire, Portsmouth 
and Southampton. 
 

Initial Proposals for Hampshire, Portsmouth and Southampton 
 

10. This sub-region has a combined electorate of 1,273,506. It has been proposed 
that this will be split into 17 different constituencies, a reduction of one from 
the existing allocation. 

11. In respect of the Hampshire and Eastleigh Borough area, the BCE proposal 
states “we propose significantly reconfigured constituencies of North West 
Hampshire and Test Valley. We propose that the Borough of Basingstoke and 
Deane wards of Pamber and Silchester, Bramley and Sherfield, and 
Sherborne St. John are transferred from the North East Hampshire 
constituency to the North West Hampshire constituency. Consequently, we 
propose to include the District of Test Valley wards of Anna, Amport, and 
Penton Bellinger in our proposed Test Valley constituency. To ensure the Test 
Valley constituency is within 5% of the electoral quota and to accommodate 
the loss of a constituency in the sub-region, we propose to include the Twyford 
and Compton areas of the Borough of Winchester and the Hiltingbury and 
Chandler’s Ford areas of the Borough of Eastleigh in our Test Valley 
constituency.” 

6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

12. Please see appendix 1 for a map of the area with the proposed boundary 
changes. 

13. In Hampshire, Portsmouth and Southampton, three of the existing 
constituencies remain unaltered, while a further four are altered only by the 
transfer of one ward. 

14. Eastleigh is one of the three constituencies that have been untouched by the 
changes. However, it is proposed by the BCE that the Hiltingbury and 
Chandler’s Ford wards (situated in the Borough of Eastleigh) but currently 
within the Winchester parliamentary constituency be moved to the Test Valley 
constituency. 

Financial Implications 

15. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  
 

Equality and Diversity Implications 
 

16. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
does not relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, 
or fostering good relations between different people.  An Equality Impact 
Assessment has not been carried out. 

 

Conclusion 
 
17. Members are invited to comment on the BCE proposals and to decide if they 

wish to submit a response to the BCE. 
 

RICHARD WARD (MONITORING OFFICER) 
DAN MALLINDER (PLACEMENT STUDENT) 

 
Date: 21 November 2016 
Contact Officer: Richard Ward 
Tel No: 023 8068 8103 
E-mail: Richard.Ward@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: Appendix 1 Plan of Proposed Changes 
*Report No  
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

 (Initial Proposals for new Parliamentary constituency boundaries in the South 
East region) from Boundary Commission. 

 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	5 Boundary Commission Initial Review
	BCE Appendix One


